
 

 

 

CITY OF DAHLONEGA 

Council Meeting Agenda 
January 06, 2020 6:00 PM 
 

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council 

meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 706-864-6133. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND WELCOME 

PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE AMERICAN FLAG 

OATH OF OFFICE NEWLY ELECTED OFFICALS  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENT – PLEASE LIMIT TO THREE MINUTES 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 

a. Special Called Meeting Minutes - November 21, 2019 

b. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - December 2, 2019 

c. Special Called Meeting Minutes December 19, 2019  

ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION: 

1. Ordinance 2019-29 – State Standards Adoption for Construction - Doug Parks, City Attorney 

2. Resolution 2020-01 - Bill Schmid, City Manager 

OLD BUSINESS: 

3. Update on 2018 RTP Grant - Kevin Herrit, Director 

4. Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation Bids & Recommendation - John Jarrard, Water/Wastewater 
Treatment Director 

5. Occupancy Agreement for City County Building - Bill Schmid, City Manager  

NEW BUSINESS: 

6. Mayor Pro Tempore - Sam Norton, Mayor  

7. Financial Report - November 2019 - Melody Marlowe, Finance 

8. Kingwood Dahlonega International Resort LLC d/b/a Achasta - Mary Csukas, City Clerk 

 

COMMENTS – PLEASE LIMIT TO THREE MINUTES 

      Clerk Comments 
      City Manager Comments 
      City Attorney Comments  
      City Council Comments 
      Mayor Comments 

ADJOURNMENT 

  

  

- Page 1 -



 

 

 

CITY OF DAHLONEGA 

Special Called Meeting Minutes 
November 21, 2019, 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
Mayor Sam Norton 
Council Member Bruce Hoffman 
Council Member Helen Hardman 
Council Member JoAnne Taylor 
Council Member Mitchel Ridley 
Council Member Roman Gaddis 
Council Member Ron Larson - absent 

 

PRESENT 
City Manager Bill Schmid 
City Clerk Mary Csukas 
Director Melody Marlowe 
Director Mark Buchanan 
Director Kevin Herrit 
Superintendent John Jarrard 
 
 

Present 
City Attorney Doug Parks 
Director Shannon Ferguson 
Tourism Director Sam McDuffie 
Cemetery Chair Chris Worick 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND WELCOME 

Mayor Norton called the Special Called Meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mayor Norton called for a motion to approve the agenda.  

Motion made by Council Member Ridley, Seconded by Council Member Gaddis 

Voting Yea: Council Member Hoffman, Council Member Ridley, Council Member Gaddis, Council Member Taylor, 
Council Member Hardman 

Council Member Larson-absent 

 
Mayor Norton suspended the Special Called Meeting at 4:01 p.m.to conduct a work session meeting.  

Mayor Norton re-convened the Special Called Meeting at 5:06 p.m. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution Approving 2019 Municipal General Election and Special Election Results         

 Mayor Norton stated Council had a discussion on Resolution Approving 2019 Municipal General Election 
and Special Election Results and asked for approval of the Resolution Approving the 2019 Municipal 
General Election and Special Election Results. 

Motion made by Council Member Gaddis, Seconded by Council Member Taylor. 

Voting Yea: Council Member Hoffman, Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council 
Member Ridley, Council Member Gaddis,  

Council Member Larson-absent 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Norton adjourned the Special Called Meeting at 5:08 p.m. 

 

  

- Page 2 -



 

 

 

CITY OF DAHLONEGA 

Council Meeting Minutes 
December 02, 2019 6:00 PM 
 

 

 

PRESENT 
Mayor Sam Norton 
Council Member Bruce Hoffman 
Council Member Helen Hardman 
Council Member JoAnne Taylor 
Council Member Mitchel Ridley 
Council Member Roman Gaddis 
Council Member Ron Larson  

 

PRESENT 
City Manager Bill Schmid 
City Clerk Mary Csukas 
Director Melody Marlowe 
Director Mark Buchanan 
Director Kevin Herrit 
Superintendent John Jarrard 
 
 

Present 
City Attorney Doug Parks 
Director Shannon Ferguson 
Tourism Director Sam McDuffie 
Cemetery Chair Chris Worick 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND WELCOME 

Mayor Norton Called the Meeting to order at 6:14 p.m. 

PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE AMERICAN FLAG 

Mayor Norton asked City Manager Bill Schmid to lead the Council in prayer and Council Member Bruce Hoffman 
to lead the Council in the pledge of allegiance  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Norton called for a motion for approval of the agenda 

Motion made by Council Member Larson, Seconded by Council Member Ridley 

Voting Yea: Council Member Hoffman, Council Member Larson, Council Member Ridley, Council Member Gaddis, 
Council Member Taylor, Council Member Hardman 

PUBLIC COMMENT – PLEASE LIMIT TO THREE MINUTES 

No comments 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 

Mayor Sam Norton called for a motion of approval for the November 4, 2019 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
presented with no changes  

Motion made by Council Member Ridley, Seconded by Council Member Gaddis. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Hoffman, Council Member Hardman, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson, Council Member Taylor 

a Regular Council Meeting Minutes - November 4, 2019 

  

OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Flexible Spending Account (FSA) Bank Account - Melody Marlowe, Finance Director 
Mayor Norton noted that Kimberly Stafford, Assistant Finance Manager presented the Flexible Spending 
Account (FSA) Bank Account at the November 21, 2019 Work Session. Mayor Norton inquired if Melody 
Marlowe, Finance Director could give a brief overview of this agenda item. 

 Director Marlowe stated that in 2020 the City of Dahlonega will offer a Flexible spending account to the 
employees as an added benefit. The City will need to establish a Flexible spending bank account to 
handle these transactions. We are asking for Council approval to establish this bank account. 

- Page 3 -



 Mayor Norton noted there were no changes since the Work Session and asked if Council had any 
questions from Staff on this item, no questions were asked. Mayor Sam Norton called for a motion of 
approval.  

NEW BUSINESS: 

2. Monthly Financial Reports - October 2019 - Melody Marlowe, Finance Director 

 Mayor Norton asked Director Marlowe if she has any further information for Council on this financial 
report.  

Director Marlowe stated that this report will be presented with a highlight each month going forward. 
This month the City has received the annual insurance state payment check in the amount of 
$395,901.00 which is 10% greater than the budgeted amount and 6% greater than the amount received 
last year. The State of Georgia collects a percentage from every insurance policy sold within the City of 
Dahlonega and we receive a portion of those funds.  

Motion made by Council Member Taylor, Seconded by Council Member Hardman. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Hoffman, Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council 
Member Ridley, Council Member Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
 

COMMENTS – PLEASE LIMIT TO THREE MINUTES      

City Clerk 

Retail and Farm Winery Alcoholic Beverage Applications were all in compliance for the 2020 renewal.  

GMRC annual event and Employee Christmas Party are upcoming this month.  

City Manager comments 

GDOT Barlow Road – The City of Dahlonega will be a participating partnership with GDOT who will supply over 
half of the funds.  

Wimpy Mill project will be discussed at the upcoming Work Session on Dec 19th  

City Council  

Council Member Taylor thanked the Old-Fashioned Christmas committee and the DDA for their outstanding job 
on the Lighting of the Square. It was a huge success.  

Council Member Larson echoed Council Member Taylor on her praise of the Lighting on the Square and has 
enjoyed the time with Council Member Hoffman on the Council.  

Council Member Ridley stated that he had a stupendous time at the Lighting of the Square and has enjoyed his 
time with Council Member Hoffman and he will be missed.  

Council Member Hardman stated that she has thoroughly enjoyed her time with Council Member Hoffman and 
hopes he will continue to attend meetings an audience attendee.  

Council Member Gaddis stated that he has enjoyed these past eight years with Council Member Bruce Hoffman 

Council Member Hoffman stated that he has enjoyed his time with this Council as this has been the best Council 
and a privilege.  

Mayor Norton relieved staff from attending the Regular Council Meetings unless they have business to address 
before the Council. Mayor Norton reminded everyone to please come and enjoy the Employee Christmas Party.  

Mayor Norton thanked Council Member Hoffman for the last 8 years on the Council and for everything he has 
done for the City 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Council Member Hoffman to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting.  

 

- Page 4 -



 

CITY OF DAHLONEGA 
Special Called Meeting Minutes 
December 19, 2019, 4:00 PM 

 
 

PRESENT 
Mayor Sam Norton 
Council Member Bruce Hoffman ‐ absent 
Council Member Helen Hardman 
Council Member JoAnne Taylor 
Council Member Mitchell Ridley 
Council Member Roman Gaddis 
Council Member Ron Larson 

PRESENT 
City Manager Bill Schmid 
Director Melody Marlowe 
Director Mark Buchanan 
Director Kevin Herrit 
Superintendent John Jarrard 

Present 
City Attorney Doug Parks Director 
Shannon Ferguson Tourism 
Director Sam McDuffie Chamber 
President Robb Nichols 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND WELCOME 

Mayor Norton opened the Special Called Meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Norton called for a motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion made by Council Member Larson, Seconded by Council Member Hardman. 

Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member Gaddis, 

Council Member Larson. Council Member Hoffman‐absent  

 

Mayor Norton suspended the Special Called Meeting at 4:01 p.m. to open the work session. 
Mayor Norton re‐convened the Special Called Meeting at 5:10 p.m. 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1.  2020 Agreement for Tourism Development Services 

Mayor Norton called for a motion to incorporate the 2020 Agreement for Tourism Development Services with 
the date 12/19/2019 and to approve without further change. 

Motion made by Council Member Larson, Seconded by Council Member Taylor. 

Mayor Norton called for a vote of all in favor signify so by saying aye, like sign for those opposed. The 
motion carried with a vote of ayes 5/0.   
Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
Council Member Hoffman‐absent  

 

 
2.  W/WW Treatment Plant Professional Services Agreement 

Mayor Norton called for a motion to approve the Professional Service Agreement between the City of Dahlonega 
and Jarrard Water Services, Inc. 

Motion made by Council Member Gaddis, Seconded by Council Member Taylor. 

Mayor Norton called for a vote of all in favor signify so by saying aye, like sign for those opposed. The 
motion carried with a vote of ayes 5/0.   
Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
Council Member Hoffman‐absent  

- Page 5 -



3.  Ford F‐350 Cab & Chassis Bid Award #2020‐04 

Mayor Norton called for a motion to approve the Ford‐350 Cab & Chassis Bid Award #2020‐04. 

Motion made by Council Member Gaddis, Seconded by Council Member Larson. 

Mayor Norton called for a vote of all in favor signify so by saying aye, like sign for those opposed. 
The motion carried with a vote of ayes 5/0.   
Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
Council Member Hoffman‐absent  

 
4.  Ford F‐550 with Knapheide Forestry Body Bid Award ‐ #2020‐03 

Mayor Norton called for a motion to approve the Ford F‐550 with Knapheide Forestry Body Bid Award 
#2020‐03. 

Motion made by Council Member Taylor, Seconded by Council Member Hardman. 

Mayor Norton called for a vote of all in favor signify so by saying aye, like sign for those opposed. 
The motion carried with a vote of ayes 5/0.   
Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
Council Member Hoffman‐absent  
 

 
5.  Ford F‐750 Dump Truck Bid Award #2020‐07 

Mayor Norton called  for  a motion  to  approve the  Ford  F‐750 Dump Truck Bid Award #  2020‐07. 

Motion made by Council Member Gaddis, Seconded by Council Member Taylor. 

Mayor Norton  called  for  a  vote of  all  in  favor  signify  so by  saying aye,  like  sign  for  those opposed. The 
motion carried with a vote of ayes 5/0.   
Voting Yea: Council Member Hardman, Council Member Taylor, Council Member Ridley, Council Member 
Gaddis, Council Member Larson 
Council Member Hoffman‐absent  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Council Member Taylor motioned to adjourn the meeting. Mayor Norton adjourned the meeting at 5:15 p.m. 

- Page 6 -



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
DATE: January 6, 2020 

TITLE: Ordinance 2019-29 – State Standards Adoption for Construction  

PRESENTED BY: Doug Parks, City Attorney 

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Ordinance to amend the Code of the City of Dahlonega regarding enforcement of the Georgia State 
Minimum Standard Codes for Construction. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION: 

N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommendation is approval of Ordinance 2019-29 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance 2019-29 

- Page 7 -



ORDINANCE 2019-29  
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF DAHLONEGA, GEORGIA, SUBPART B: LAND USE 
AND LAND DEVELOPMENT; CHAPTER 103: BUILDINGS AND REGULATIONS; ARTICLE II: 
CONTSTRUCTION CODES; SECTION 103-19: STATE STANDARDS ADOPTED. 
 

Short title: “ordinance to amend the Code of the City of Dahlonega regarding enforcement of the Georgia 
State Minimum Standard Codes for Construction.” 
 
WHEREAS, the Georgia State Minimum Standard Codes for Construction promote the life, health, safety 
and general welfare of all citizens, and; 
 
WHEREAS, said Codes are also designed to protect the property of all citizens, and; 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mayor and City Council to adopt and enforce, in all respects, the various 
Georgia State Minimum Standard Codes for Construction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained, and it is so ordained by the authority of the City Council of Dahlonega, 
that Subpart B, Chapter 103, Article II, Section 103-19, shall be amended  in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 103-19. - State standards adopted.  
 
(a)  The mayor and city council hereby adopt the following state minimum standard codes, as adopted 

and amended by the state department of community affairs:  

(1) International Building Code      2018 Edition 
(2) International Mechanical Code   2018 Edition 
(3) International Fuel Gas Code   2018 Edition 
(4) International Plumbing Code   2018 Edition 
(5) National Electrical Code    2017 Edition 
(6) International Fire Code    2018 Edition 
(7) International Residential Code   2018 Edition 
(8) International Energy Conservation Code 2015 Edition 
(9) International Swimming Pool and Spa Code 2018 Edition 

 
(b)  The following appendices of said codes, as adopted and amended by the state department of 

community affairs, are hereby adopted by reference as though they were copied herein fully:  

(1) International Building Code: All appendices 
(2) International Mechanical Code: All appendices 
(3) International Fuel Gas Code:  All appendices 
(4) International Plumbing Code: All appendices 
(5) National Electrical Code: All appendices  
(6) International Fire Code: All appendices 
(7) International Residential Code:  All appendices 
(8) National Energy Conservation Code: All appendices 
(9) International Swimming Pool and Spa Code: All appendices 

- Page 8 -



 
(c) The following are adopted by reference as though they were copied herein fully:  

(1) International Property Maintenance Code, 2012 edition, with state amendments (2015).  

(2) International Existing Building Code, 2012 edition, with state amendments (2015).  

(d) The city attorney is directed and authorized to direct the codifier to make necessary minor, non-
substantive corrections to the provisions of this Code, including but not limited to, the misspelling of 
words, typographical errors, duplicate pages, incorrect references to state or federal laws, statutes, 
this Code, or other codes or similar legal or technical sources, and other similar amendments, 
without necessity of passage of a corrective ordinance or other action of the Mayor and Council. The 
city clerk  shall, upon the written advice or recommendation of the city attorney and without the 
necessity of further council action, alter, amend or supplement any non-codified ordinance, 
resolution or other record filed in his or her office as necessary to effect similar non-substantive 
changes or revisions and ensure that such public records are correct, complete and accurate. 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect on the ____ day of ______________, 2019. 
 
ORDAINED, this _____ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Sam Norton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mary Csukas, City Clerk 
 

- Page 9 -



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
DATE: January 6, 2020 

TITLE: Resolution 2020-01 

PRESENTED BY: Bill Schmid, City Manager 

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Resolution to Support the Planned Tourism Board 

 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION: 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff approves Resolution 2020-01 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Staff approves Resolution 2020-01 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 2020-01 

- Page 10 -



 
RESOLUTION 2020-01 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Dahlonega supports the planned tourism board; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the City contemplates that the tourism board will be,  for the purpose of 

enhancing tourism in our community, administering tax money derived from the City’s hotel-motel 

tax revenues; and   

 

WHEREAS, it is incumbent upon the City to oversee the administration of tax fund revenues; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City has received and reviewed a pro forma set of bylaws for the planned 

board for comment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the City of 

Dahlonega and it is so resolved by the authority thereof that the City supports the adoption of  bylaws 

by the planned tourism board in substantially the form provided to the City because the pro forma 

bylaws create a structure consistent with the fiduciary duty of the board because they: 

 

(1) Describe the directors’ legal duties and standard of care for observing those duties; and  

 

(2) Define the board’s ability to delegate management to officers, committees, and others, 

subject to the board’s oversight; and 

 

(3) Guide the board in meeting its overall fiduciary responsibilities. 

 

 

RESOLVED THIS________ DAY OF __________________, 2020.  

 

 

By: __________________________  

       Sam Norton, Mayor  

 

Attest:________________________  

            Mary Csukas, City Clerk 

 

- Page 11 -



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
DATE: January 6, 2020 

TITLE: Update on 2018 RTP Grant 

PRESENTED BY: Kevin Herrit, Director 

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Action item to approve use of TSPLOST funds 

Update on progress and funding for the 2018 RTP Grant at Wimpy Mill. 

 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION: 

Sought and obtained RTP Grant approval from DNR for improvement at the Wimpy Mill Picnic area. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

$295,000 from TSPLOST 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends the use of TSPLOST funds to complete the bridge and sidewalk portions of this project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

I move we approved the authorization of TSPLOST funds not exceeding $295,000 in conjunction with the RTP Grant 
funding for improvements to Wimpy Mill Picnic area. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Council Update on 2018 RTP. 

- Page 12 -



 

   

 

Memorandum 
To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Kevin Herrit, Community Development Director 

C.C.: Bill Schmid, City Manager 

Date: December 9, 2019 

Re: 2018 RTP (Recreational Trails Program) Grant Update 

  
 

Staff seeks Council approval to use currently undesignated Transportation Special 
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (TSPLOST) funds to finance the balance of costs associated 
with the Wimpy Mill Park project for the portion not otherwise funded by the Recreation 
Trails Program (RTP) Grant or other committed resources.  The estimated cost to be funded 
by TSPLOST is $295,000, which will be used primarily to construct the pedestrian bridge 
adjacent to the existing Wimpy Mill vehicular bridge.  The existing bridge is insufficiently 
sized to safely accommodate increased usage by pedestrians, particularly as the community 
grows over time.  The initial estimate was prior to the field survey and engineering design.  
This approach would allow the city to complete the project on time and leverage state funds 
by securing reimbursement under the grant for $134,501.72 

The alternative to this approach is to not construct the pedestrian bridge at this time.  
The impact of not doing so would mean delaying the project and waiving the previously 
approved RTP Grant from the Georgia Department of Natural Resources.  This action may 
complicate or compromise the City’s ability to secure these funds in a subsequent grant cycle.  
Further background information is provided below. 

 In January 2018, City Council authorized staff to apply for the Georgia Department 
of Natural Resources Recreational Trails Program (RTP) Grant.  The city was selected to 
submit for the second round applications in May 2018 and was awarded the grant on Decem-
ber 14, 2018. The executed agreement for this grant runs until December 31, 2020. 

- Page 13 -



 

465 Riley Road Dahlonega, Georgia 30533  Phone: 706-482-2708  Fax: 706-864-4837 

Phase one included a development of a trailhead that consists of modifications to the 
gravel parking area, paved sidewalk from the parking area down the eastern bank of  the 
Yahoola Creek to an ADA accessible main deck, floating dock with a kayak launch, stan-
chioned bridge crossing the Yahoola Creek and a paved sidewalk that will lead back up the 
western bank to Wimpy Mill Road and connect to the existing sidewalk along Wimpy Mill 
Road that leads into Downtown Dahlonega.  The kayak launch dock creates a starting point 
to an approximately 3/4 mile water trail that will head that provides access to the Lake Zwer-
ner Reservoir and 3.2 miles of existing hiking trail around Lake Zwerner. 

The initial projected total cost at time of grant application was $190,721.72, with our 
local match being $38,144.34.  The budget included $67,790.00 in matching funds and 
$2,880.00 in an in-kind match.  The matching funds and the in-kind funds took the applica-
tion budget to $205,171.72 in total funds for the project.  After procuring Davis Engineering 
and Surveying (DES) to perform a pre-engineering study that would show what the best fea-
sible route for the pedestrian bridge would be and how the placement and cost would differ 
from the proposed bridge structure in the grant application, DES recommended that the pe-
destrian bridge be changed to run along the side of the current vehicular two-lane bridge on 
Wimpy Mill Road.  Following this, the new cost estimates came in at a total amount of 
$621,000, comprised heavily of the pedestrian bridge, estimated at $375,000.00 for the mate-
rials, abutments, and installation and the expanded lower parking lot.  Staff performed addi-
tional research and was able to get an estimated bridge cost of $252,000, reducing the overall 
cost by $123,000.  The current bridge design will allow us to span the Yahoola Creek and not 
require section 404 permits or variances from the Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  
The reduced bridge cost brought the engineer’s overall project cost estimate down from a 
total of $621,000 to roughly $498,000.   

The trailhead for the blue way should consist of a design with a dock and an ADA 
accessible kayak launch.  To help with the accessibility of the ADA accessible kayak launch, 
dredging on a section where the creek has deposited sediment at the confluence points of the 
Yahoola Creek delta, and the reservoir should occur.  Sediment buildup has restricted water 
flow to where the dock will connect to the concentrated flow area of the creek.  Staff is cur-
rently working toward a solution related to these deposits and readying for the bid portion of 
Phase 1.  Council support for the revised project is respectfully sought. 
 

- Page 14 -



- Page 15 -



- Page 16 -



- Page 17 -



- Page 18 -



- Page 19 -



133 Prominence Court, Suite 210

Dawsonville, GA 30534

(706) 265-12334

Davis Engineering & Surveying April 29, 2019

LAKE ZWERNER LAUNCH AREA ONLY
ITEM QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST

MOBILIZATION 1 EA $1,500.00 $1,500.00

CONSTRUCTION STAKING & ASBUILT 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00

EARTHWORK INCLUDING CLEARING, GRUBBING, ETC. 1 LS $21,900.00 $21,900.00

SITE - WHEELSTOPS 22 EA $150.00 $3,300.00

SITE - GRAVEL 245 TN $45.00 $11,025.00

SITE - CONCRETE 320 SY $60.00 $19,200.00

SITE - SIGNAGE 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00

SITE - STRIPING 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00

SITE - LIGHTING 2 EA $4,210.00 $8,420.00

SITE - LANDSCAPING 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

ES&PC - CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000.00

ES&PC - CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA 1 EA $800.00 $800.00

ES&PC - TYPE "S" SILT FENCE 850 LF $4.00 $3,400.00

ES&PC - HAY BALE CHECK DAMS 5 EA $350.00 $1,750.00

ES&PC - RIP-RAP 10 TN $45.00 $450.00

ES&PC - PERMANENT GRASSING 1 AC $1,850.00 $1,850.00

10% CONTINGENCY $9,009.50

TOTAL $99,104.50

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

- Page 20 -



133 Prominence Court, Suite 210

Dawsonville, GA 30534

(706) 265‐1234

Davis Engineering & Surveying June 26, 2019

LAKE ZWERNER BRIDGE & SIDEWALK
ITEM QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST

MOBILIZATION 1 EA $20,000.00 $20,000.00

CONSTRUCTION STAKING & ASBUILT 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

EARTHWORK INCLUDING CLEARING, GRUBBING, ETC. 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500.00

SITE ‐ CONCRETE 250 SY $60.00 $15,000.00

SITE ‐ SIGNAGE 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00

SITE ‐ STRIPING 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00

SITE ‐ LANDSCAPING 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00

BRIDGE ‐ MATERIALS, ABUTMENTS, AND INSTALL 1 LS $375,000.00 $375,000.00

ES&PC ‐ CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA $2,000.00 $2,000.00

ES&PC ‐ CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA 1 EA $800.00 $800.00

ES&PC ‐ TYPE "S" SILT FENCE 650 LF $4.00 $2,600.00

ES&PC ‐ RIP‐RAP 50 TN $45.00 $2,250.00

ES&PC ‐ PERMANENT GRASSING 1 AC $1,000.00 $1,000.00

10% CONTINGENCY $44,615.00

TOTAL $490,765.00

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

- Page 21 -



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
DATE: December 19, 2019 

TITLE: Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation Bids & Recommendation  

PRESENTED BY: John Jarrard, Water/Wastewater Treatment Director 

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation Bids & Recommendation 

 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION: 

Council Approved Engineering and Bidding Process July 1, 2019. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Budget for this project was $450,000.  Winning bid was from Cedar Farms & Construction for $424,659.70. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff agrees with the recommendation from Turnipseed Engineers for awarding this project to Cedar Farms & 
Construction for $424,659.70.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Council to approve this project in the January 6, 2020 Council Meeting. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Turnipseed Engineers Bid Tabulation/Recommendation for Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation 

- Page 22 -



- Page 23 -



- Page 24 -



- Page 25 -



- Page 26 -



- Page 27 -



- Page 28 -



- Page 29 -



- Page 30 -



- Page 31 -



- Page 32 -



- Page 33 -



- Page 34 -



- Page 35 -



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
DATE: December 19, 2019 

TITLE: Occupancy Agreement for City County Building  

PRESENTED BY: Bill Schmid, City Manager  

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The accompanying document establishes a mechanism for the monthly payment of fair market rent by the Chamber 
of Commerce for its use of the City’s portion of the joint City/County Building. The agreement contains language 
which addresses responsibilities for upkeep, maintenance, and repairs, as well as a requirement for insurance 
coverage of the building and its contents. An agreement of this type is necessary for the City to avoid the granting of 

a gratuity.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION: 

Commonly known as the “Chamber Building”, the structure at ____ South Park Street is actually owned jointly by the 
City and County. The building was constructed in ____ to replace a previously existing Welcome Center operated by 
the City. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

$6,000 per year to be paid from non-tourism funds of the Chamber. No rent is charged for the Visitor Center portion 
of the building. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Approval for execution by the Mayor.  

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

I move that the Occupancy Agreement be approved as presented.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

2020 Occupancy Agreement  

- Page 36 -



 

 

CITY-COUNTY BUILDING OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made on this _____ day of _______________, 2020. Between The City of 

Dahlonega, a Georgia Municipal Corporation (LANDLORD) whose address is 465 Riley Road, 

Dahlonega, GA 30533 and The Dahlonega-Lumpkin County Chamber of Commerce, Inc. a private 

sector nonprofit organization organized under the laws of Georgia (TENANT) The word 

"TENANT" refers to the Tenant named above.  

1. PROPERTY: TENANT agrees to rent from LANDLORD and LANDLORD agrees to rent to 

TENANT the City’s undivided one-half interest in the building located at 13 South Park Street, 

Dahlonega, GA 30533, and identified as the City-County Welcome Center Building (the 

PREMISES).  

 

2. TERM: The term of this Agreement is for one year starting on January 1, 2020 and ending on  

December 31, 2020.  

 

3. RENT: The TENANT agrees to pay $1250.00 as rent, to be paid as follows:  

As to the upper floor, $500.00 is due, in advance, on the first day of each month. The first 

payment of rent is due January 1, 2020. The TENANT must pay a late charge of $50.00 for 

each payment that is more than five (5) days late. This charge is due with and shall be 

considered to be a part of the monthly rent payment for the month in which the rent was paid 

late. As to the street level floor, the rental of $750.00 shall be deemed paid to the City so long 

as a valid contract for tourism development services is in effect between the City of Dahlonega 

and the Dahlonega-Lumpkin County Chamber of Commerce, Inc.; however, if no contract is 

in effect, the sum of $750.00 shall be paid monthly consistently with the terms expressed herein 

as to the rental for the upper floor.  

 

4. USE OF THE PREMISES: The TENANT may use the PREMISES only as a Chamber of 

Commerce and welcome center facility.   

 

5. UTILITIES: The TENANT will pay for all utilities. 

 

6. PAYMENTS BY LANDLORD: If the TENANT fails to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement, the LANDLORD may take any required action and charge the cost, including 

reasonable attorney fees, to the TENANT. Failure to pay such costs upon demand is a violation 

of this Agreement.  

 

7. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: If the PREMISES are totally destroyed through no fault 

of the TENANT, the TENANT's employees or TENANT's visitors, then the Agreement will 

end and the TENANT will pay rent up to the date of destruction.  

 

- Page 37 -



 

 

8. INTERRUPTION OF SERVICES: The LANDLORD is not responsible for any 

inconvenience or interruption of services due to repairs, improvements or for any reason 

beyond the LANDLORD’s control.  

 

9. ALTERATIONS: The TENANT must get the LANDLORD's prior written consent to alter, 

improve, paint or wallpaper the PREMISES. 

 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The TENANT must comply with laws, orders, rules and 

requirements of governmental authorities and insurance companies which have issued or are 

about to issue policies covering the PREMISES and/or its contents.  

 

11. NO WAIVER BY LANDLORD: The LANDLORD does not give up or waive any rights by 

accepting rent or by failing to enforce any terms of this Agreement.  

 

12. NO ASSIGNMENT OR SUBAGREEMENT: The TENANT may not sublease the 

PREMISES or assign this Agreement without the LANDLORD's prior written consent.  

 

13. ENTRY BY LANDLORD: Upon reasonable notice, the LANDLORD may enter the 

PREMISES to provide services, inspect, repair or improve the property.  In the event of 

emergency no consent is required. 

 

14. QUIET ENJOYMENT: The TENANT may use and use the PREMISES without interference 

subject to the terms of this Agreement.  

 

15. HAZARDOUS USE: The TENANT will not keep anything in the PREMISES which is 

dangerous, flammable, explosive or which might increase the danger of fire or any other 

hazard, or which would increase LANDLORD's fire or hazard insurance.  

 

16. INJURY OR DAMAGE: The TENANT will be responsible for any injury or damage caused 

by the act or neglect of the TENANT, the TENANT's employees or TENANT's visitors. The 

LANDLORD is not responsible for any injury or damage unless due to the negligence or 

improper conduct of the LANDLORD.  

 

17. NOTICES: All notices provided by this Agreement must be written and delivered personally 

or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the parties at their addresses listed above, or to 

such other address as the parties may from time to time designate. Notices to the LANDLORD 

must also be sent to the LANDLORD's agent listed above (if any).  

 

18. VALIDITY OF AGREEMENT: If a clause or provision of this Agreement is legally invalid, 

the rest of this Agreement remains in effect. If a clause or provision of this Agreement is 

ambiguous, and it may be interpreted in a manner either consistent or inconsistent with existing 

law, it shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with existing law.  

 

- Page 38 -



 

 

19. PARTIES: The LANDLORD and each of the TENANTS are bound by this Agreement. All 

parties who lawfully succeed to their rights and responsibilities are also bound.  

 

20. TENANT'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT: The TENANT acknowledges having read all of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement and the attached rules and regulations. TENANT 

acknowledges that no oral representations have been made to him by the LANDLORD or the 

LANDLORD's agent(s) other than the representations contained in this Agreement. The 

TENANT acknowledges that he is relying only upon the promises and representations 

contained in this Agreement.  

 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: All promises the LANDLORD has made are contained in this 

written Agreement. This Agreement can only be changed by an agreement in writing by both 

the TENANT and the LANDLORD.  

 

22. SIGNATURES: The LANDLORD and the TENANT agree to the terms of this Agreement. 

If this Agreement is made by a corporation, its proper corporate office 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have caused this Agreement to be executed and 

their seals to be affixed as to Landlord, this _________ day of ______________, 2019, As to 

Tenant, this ____________ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 

       LANDLORD: 

 

WITNESS:       THE CITY OF DAHLONEGA   

 

____________________________   By:  __________________________ 

NOTARY                  Name: _____Sam Norton_________        

       Title: ________Mayor____________ 

 

[SEAL] 

 

       TENANT:  

       

       THE DAHLONEGA-LUMPKIN 

       COUNTY CHAMBER OF   

WITNESS:                  COMMERCE, INC. 

 

_____________________________    

NOTARY                                                                    By: __________________________ 

       Name: ______Robert Nichols______ 

       Title: __________CEO___________ 

[SEAL] 

             

- Page 39 -



 

 

                 

                           

GENERAL FUND 

   

    

• Property taxes were billed in October with a due date of November 17.  The Lumpkin County Tax Commissioner will 

forward November receipts to the City in December.  

• The annual revenue for Insurance Premium Tax has been received in the amount of $395,901, which is 10% greater 

than the budgeted amount of $345,000.   

• Licenses and Permits are trending above budget projections as businesses pay renewal fees for alcohol licenses for 

2020. 

• Department expenditures are in line with budget expectations.   

• Transfers out to DDA for operational expenses are being transferred monthly; the full amount budgeted for the year for 

capital purchases was transferred out in October. 

    

 

 

 

 

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000

Budget

Actual

FY2020 General Fund Operating Revenue 
YTD November 30, 3019

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000

Budget

Actual

FY2020 General Fund Operating Expenditures 
YTD November 30, 3019

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

$90,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

Local Option Sales Tax Collections

Local Option Sales Tax FY19 Local Option Sales Tax FY20

CITY OF DAHLONEGA 
 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

For the Two Month Ended November 30, 2019 

(The Budget presented is the Adopted Budget prior to Reappropriations.)  

Page 1 of 9

- Page 40 -



 

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND 

• Tax revenue collections are trending above budget expectations.   

    

SPLOST & TSPLOST FUNDS 

• Sales tax revenue is trending slightly over budget projections. 

WATER AND SEWER FUND 

• Water and sewer sales are trending slightly above budget expectations.  

• Connection Fees revenue fluctuates from month to month.   

• All department expenses are in line with budget.  

   

   

SOLID WASTE FUND 

• Revenues and expenses are meeting budget expectations. 

• Expenses for Supplies reflects the non-routine purchase of 22 dumpsters at a cost of $29,280. 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

• Operational results are better than budget expectations. 

 

(Prepared for Council and Management by Melody Marlowe 12/20/19) 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

Hotel Motel Tax Collections

Hotel Motel Tax FY19 Hotel Motel Tax FY20

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000

Budget

Actual

FY2020 Water & Sewer Fund Revenue 
YTD November 30, 3019

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000

Budget

Actual

FY2020 General Fund Expenses
YTD November 30, 3019

Page 2 of 9

- Page 41 -



Target

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

General Property Taxes 1,239,153$   292,831$     23.63%

Local Option Sales Tax 901,188        162,741       18.06%

Other Taxes 1,452,000     461,805       31.80%

Licenses & Permits 169,000        122,058       72.22%

Fines, Fees, and Forfeitures 160,000        47,211         29.51%

Charges for Services 96,500          11,835         12.26%

Intergovernmental 20,600          1,995           9.68%

Interest 80,000          12,495         15.62%

Other 27,100          1,824           6.73%

     Total 4,145,541     1,114,795    26.89%

Expenditures

Legislative 209,541        35,023         16.71%

Executive 315,677        53,009         16.79%

Election 19,950          440              2.21%

Administration 968,723        169,310       17.48%

Municipal Court 232,983        33,250         14.27%

Street Construction and Maintenance 1,123,165     202,395       18.02%

Shop 100,316        16,443         16.39%

Cemetery  58,849          9,857           16.75%

Parks 42,740          4,631           10.84%

Community Development 341,051        51,540         15.11%

Public Safety 411,394        56,521         13.74%

     Total 3,824,389     632,419       16.54%

Excess of revenues over expenditures 321,152        482,376       150.20%

Other Funding Sources (Uses)

Transfers In/(Out) (1,133,096)    (883,370)      77.96%

Contingency  (58,244)         -                   0.00%

     Total (1,191,340)    (883,370)      74.15%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (870,188)$     (400,994)$    46.08%

 

General Fund 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

Page 3 of 9

- Page 42 -



Target   

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue (5%) 285,024$        58,861$          20.65%

Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue (3%) 171,014          35,317            20.65%

     Total 456,038          94,178            20.65%

Expenses

Purchased Services - Tourism 250,000          41,667            16.67%

Transfer to GG Capital Projects Fund 192,732          34,257            17.77%

Transfer to General Fund (Administration) 13,306            2,825              21.23%

     Total 456,038          78,749            17.27%

Change in Net Assets -$                    15,429$           

 

City of Dahlonega

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

Page 4 of 9

- Page 43 -



Target 

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

2014 SPLOST Revenues 105,100$        103,645$        98.62%

2020 SPLOST Revenues 371,800          -                      

Interest Income -                      142                 

     Total 476,900          103,787          21.76%

Expenses

Transfer Out - Grant Capital Projects Fund (Roads) 92,950            -                      0.00%

Transfer Out - GG Capital Projects Fund (Stormwater) 92,950            -                      0.00%

Transfer Out - Water & Sewer Fund 291,000          -                      0.00%

     Total 476,900          -                      0.00%

Change in Net Assets -$                    103,787$        

 

Notes:  

2014 SPLOST funds are dedicated to the WW Treatment Plant Upgrade project and is capped at $3 milion.

2020 SPLOST collections begin April 2020 and are dedicated to Roads (25%), Stormwater (25%), 

City of Dahlonega

SPLOST Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

 

Page 5 of 9

- Page 44 -



Target 

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

Transportation SPLOST Revenues 704,834$        133,074$        18.88%

Interest Income -                      344                 

     Total 704,834          133,418          18.93%

Expenses

Payment to Other Governments 660,450          -                      0.00%

Transfer Out - Grant Capital Projects Fund 44,384            -                      0.00%

     Total 704,834          -                      0.00%

Change in Net Assets -$                    133,418$        

Notes:  

2019 TSPLOST collections began July 2019 and are first dedicated to Oak Grove Road / Highway 19N Intersection

     project.  Future collections are for Roads and Bridges, Sidewalks, and Bicycle Paths.  

 

City of Dahlonega

Transportation SPLOST Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

 

Page 6 of 9

- Page 45 -



Target

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

Water Sales 3,171,327$       583,627$          18.40%

Sewer Sales 2,113,717         390,821            18.49%

Connection Fees 300,000            11,635              3.88%

Interest Income 66,000              14,556              22.05%

Other 15,400              764                   4.96%

     Total 5,666,444         1,001,403         17.67%

Expenses

Reservoir Maintenance 35,700              4,133                11.58%

Reservoir Loan 147,204            24,818              16.86%

Water Treatment 844,031            140,096            16.60%

W/S Distribution and Collection 952,023            157,898            16.59%

Sewage Treatment 773,369            96,852              12.52%

Sewage Lift Stations 246,130            34,216              13.90%

Interest Expense 1,064,240         177,443            16.67%

Charges for Services (Indirect Costs) 67,500              11,250              16.67%

Contingency 56,664              -                        0.00%

Depreciation 1,805,227         300,870            16.67%

     Total 5,992,088         947,576            15.81%

Excess of revenues over expenses (325,644)           53,827              -16.53%

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses)

Transfer In - SPLOST Fund 291,000            -                        0.00%

     Total 291,000            -                        0.00%

Change in Net Assets (34,644)$           53,827$            -155.37%

Also, activity related to capital projects is not shown on this report.

This report does not reflect the principal payments on bonds and GEFA debt.

City of Dahlonega

Water & Sewer Fund 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

 

Page 7 of 9

- Page 46 -



Target   

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

Solid Waste Collection Fees 903,355$        154,771$        17.13%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                      -                      

Interest Revenue -                      -                      

     Total 903,355          154,771          17.13%

Expenses

Personal Services 493,830          80,776            16.36%

Purchased Services 258,100          40,356            15.64%

Supplies 81,400            32,974            40.51%

Interest Expense 12,427            893                 7.19%

Depreciation 58,268            9,712              16.67%

     Total 904,025          164,711          18.22%

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses)

Transfer In - General Fund -                      -                      

     Total -                      -                       

Change in Net Assets (670)$              (9,940)$           1483.58%

Also, activity related to capital projects is not shown on this report.

This report does not reflect the principal payments on GEFA debt.

City of Dahlonega

Solid Waste Fund 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

Page 8 of 9

- Page 47 -



Target

Budget Actual 16.67%

Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenue -$                50$                 

Parking 50,000            -                      0.00%

Interest -                      -                      0.00%

Total Revenues 50,000            50                   0.10%

Expenditures

  DDA Administration 228,588          30,257            13.24%

  DDA Programs and Projects 135,618          18,614            13.73%

  Dahlonega 2000 -                      1,300              

  Parking -                      900                 

Total Expenditures 364,206          51,071            14.02%

Non-Operating Revenue

  Bond Issue Revenue -                      -                      

  Contributions - Private -                      -                      

  Transfer from General Fund 314,206          52,368            16.67%

Total Non-Operating Revenue 314,206          52,368            16.67%

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

  Financing Sources Over (Under)

  Expenditures and Other Financing Uses -$                1,347$            

 

City of Dahlonega

Downtown Development Authority

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - For Management Purposes Only

November 30, 2019

Page 9 of 9

- Page 48 -


	Top
	a. Special Called Meeting Minutes - November 21, 2019
	Special Called Meeting Minutes November 21, 2019

	b. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - December 2, 2019
	Regular Council Meeting Minutes  December 2, 2019

	c. Special Called Meeting Minutes December 19, 2019
	SCM Minutes 12 19 2019

	1. Ordinance 2019-29: State Standards Adoption for Construction
	ITEM-Staff-State Standards Adoption Ordinance
	ordinance - state standards adoption - Construction 

	2. Resolution 2020-01 Tourism Board
	Resolutiion 2020-01
	Resolution 2020-01

	3. 2018 RTP Grant Update
	2018 RTP Grant Update_Draft
	Council Update on 2018 RTP MB 2019-12-11

	4. Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation Bids & Recommendation
	Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation Bids &amp; Recommendation
	Turnipseed Engineers Bid TabulationRecommendation for Achasta Lift Station Rehabilitation

	5. Occupancy Agreement For City County Building
	Occupancy Agreement for City County Building
	Chamber Lease Agreement 12.11.2019

	6. Mayor Pro Tempore
	7. Financial Report - November 2019
	2019.11 Financial Reports

	8. Kingwood Dahlonega International Resort LLC d/b/a Achasta
	Bottom

